
 

199 Church Street, New York, NY  10007 ℩ nysif.com 

Kathy Hochul 
Governor 

 
GENERAL SESSION AGENDA 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ REGULAR MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2023, 4:00 P.M. 

 
 

1. STANDING REPORT(S) 
A. REPORT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & CEO GAURAV VASISHT 
B. REPORT OF ACTING GENERAL ATTORNEY DAVID WERTHEIM 

 
2. REPORT OF BOARD STANDING COMMITTEE(S) 

A. BUSINESS OPERATIONS COMMITTEE: COMMISSIONER NAVNEET KATHURIA 
B. INVESTMENT COMMITTEE: CHAIRMAN KENNETH THEOBALDS 
C. PROPERTY & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE: CHAIRMAN THEOBALDS 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE JUNE 21, 2023 BOARD MEETING  
B. TO ACCEPT THE WRITTEN REPORTS AS SUBMITTED 

 
4. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF NECESSARY) 

 
5. ADJOURN 

 
 

 



  

1 

PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE COMMISSIONERS OF THE STATE INSURANCE FUND 

HELD ON WEDNESDAY, JUNE 21, 2023 AT 10:00 A.M. 
AT 199 CHURCH STREET, 12 FLOOR BOARDROOM, NEW YORK, NY 10007 

 

PRESENT 
 
Board Executive Staff 
Kenneth Theobalds, Chairman  
Sean Graham 1 

Alexis Thomas 1 
Bhakti Mirchandani  

Louis Roberti 2 
Dennis Kessler 3 
Charles MacLeod  
Navneet Kathuria  
Ryan Delgado 4 
Scott Melvin, ex officio  
 
1 absent from June 21st Board Meeting 
2 participated from the White Plains Office 
3 participated from the Rochester Office 
4 participated from the Albany Office 

Gaurav Vasisht, Executive Director & CEO 
Joseph Mullen, Deputy Executive Director 
David Wertheim, Acting General Attorney  
Gregory Francis, Chief Investment Officer 
Chad Loshbaugh, Director of Administration 
Timothy Koester, Chief Actuary Officer 
 
 
Additional Staff & Guest(s) 
Michael Totaro, Assistant Secretary to the Board 
                       of Commissioners 
Robert Kirkland, Willis Towers Watson 
 

 

Chairman Theobalds presided. A quorum was announced and present throughout. 

1. Standing Report(s) 

Report of Executive Director & CEO  

Executive Director & CEO Gaurav Vasisht reported out that NYSIF recently hosted an event and 

panel discussion concerning sustainable investing. The event was a great success and he 

congratulated staff for their success. 

 

Report General Attorney’s Office 

Acting General Attorney David Wertheim reserved his remarks for Executive Session, subject to 

a motion to enter Executive Session. 

 

2. Report(s) of Standing Committees 

Business Operations Committee 

NYSIF’s Chief Actuary Timothy Koester and NYSIF’s external actuary Robert Kirklin from Willis 

Towers Watson presented the annual actuarial report to the Board. The presentation entitled 



  

2 

“NYSIF Appointed Actuary Report – December 31, 2022”  is incorporated as part of the June 2023 

Board materials. 

 

Investment Committee 

Chairman Theobalds reported that the Committee met on June 20, 2023. The Committee received 

a report concerning the performance of the portfolio and its external managers, and the monthly 

compliance. There were no compliance issues to report. 

 

Governance and Legal Affairs Committee 

Commissioner Scott Melvin, Chair of the Governance and Legal Affairs Committee, reported the 

Committee met on June 12, 2023. A full report will be provided in executive session, subject to a 

motion to enter executive session. 

 
3. Motion to Accept Consent Agenda 

Upon motion by Commissioner MacLeod, duly seconded by Commissioner Roberti, the Board 

unanimously voted to accept the minutes of the May 17, 2023 Board meeting and have them filed 

as the official minutes of the Board, as well as to accept the written reports as submitted.  The 

vote: Commissioner Delgado – yes; Commissioner Kathuria – yes; Commissioner MacLeod – yes; 

Commissioner Kessler – yes; Commissioner Roberti – yes; Commissioner Melvin – yes; 

Commissioner Mirchandani – yes; Chairman Theobalds – yes. 

 

4. Executive Session 

Upon motion by Commissioner Melvin, duly seconded by Commissioner Kathuria, the Board 

unanimously voted to enter Executive Session for a discussion regarding matters leading to the 

promotion of a particular person(s) - - specifically this applies to staff salaries, and for a discussion 

regarding current litigation and legal advice.  The vote: Commissioner Delgado – yes; 

Commissioner Kathuria – yes; Commissioner MacLeod – yes; Commissioner Kessler – yes; 

Commissioner Roberti – yes; Commissioner Melvin – yes; Commissioner Mirchandani – yes; 

Chairman Theobalds – yes. 

 

 

5. Report of Executive Session 

Assistant Secretary Michael Totaro announced the following action taken in Executive Session: 



  

3 

 

Upon motion by Commissioner Kathuria, duly seconded by Commissioner Roberti, the Board 

voted to approve and authorize the Investment Department to enter into contracts with the 

following six (6) companies for securitized credit management services: BlackRock Financial 

Management, Inc.; Goldman Sachs Asset Management, L.P.; Invesco Advisers, Inc.; Loomis, 

Sayles & Company, L.P.; Pacific Investment Management Company, LLC; and Semper 

Capital Management, L.P., subject to legal review and execution by staff in accordance 

with the "Procurement Guidelines - Investments." 

This resolution supersedes and replaces Resolution 22-44 date September 21, 2022.  The 

vote: Commissioner Delgado – yes; Commissioner Kathuria – yes; Commissioner MacLeod – yes; 

Commissioner Kessler – yes; Commissioner Roberti – yes; Commissioner Melvin – yes; 

Commissioner Mirchandani – abstain; Chairman Theobalds – yes. 

 

 

Upon motion by Commissioner MacLeod, duly seconded by Commissioner Kathuria, the Board 

unanimously voted to approve and authorize the salary increases for the following individuals 

as set forth in the memorandum submitted to the Board on June 21, 2023: 

 
Name Title 

Lei Zhang Head of External Asset Managers (Special Investment 
Officer) 

Joseph DePasquale  Assistant Portfolio Manager Bond Trader (Special Investment 
Officer) 
 

Raquel Sanchez Chief Investment Credit Officer (Special Investment Officer) 
 

  
 

AND, FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners authorize the Executive Director 

to take such steps as may be necessary to implement the intent of this resolution.  The vote: 

Commissioner Delgado – yes; Commissioner Kathuria – yes; Commissioner MacLeod – yes; 

Commissioner Kessler – yes; Commissioner Roberti – yes; Commissioner Melvin – yes; 

Commissioner Mirchandani – yes; Chairman Theobalds – yes. 

 

Assistant Secretary Totaro then announced that the next Board of Commissioners regular monthly 

meeting will be held on Wednesday, July 19, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. 



  

4 

 

 

6. Adjournment of Meeting 

Upon motion by Commissioner MacLeod, duly seconded by Commissioner Kathuria, the Board 

unanimously voted to adjourn the June 21st regular monthly meeting of the Board of 

Commissioners.  The vote: Commissioner Delgado – yes; Commissioner Kathuria – yes; 

Commissioner MacLeod – yes; Commissioner Kessler – yes; Commissioner Roberti – yes; 

Commissioner Melvin – yes; Commissioner Mirchandani – yes; Chairman Theobalds – yes. 

 

        

Respectfully submitted,    

 

Michael Totaro, Assistant Secretary 



 

*Th i s  p ro pose d  mo t io n  ha s  no t  bee n  a c ted  upo n .  T he  p ro po sed  mo t io n  i s  be i ng  m ade  av a i l a b le  

pu r s uan t  to  the  Ope n  Mee t ing s  L aw §103 (e )  
 

199 Church Street, New York, NY  10007 ℩ nysif.com 
23- 

Kathy hochul 

Governor 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION* 
 
The following is a procedural vote considered by the NYSIF Board of Commissioners at a meeting 
held on Wednesday, September 20, 2023.  A quorum was present throughout: 

 
A motion was made that the minutes of the June 21, 2023 meeting be accepted 
and filed as the official minutes of the Board of Commissioners. 

 
 
Commissioner__________________________provided the motion to approve  
 
Commissioner__________________________seconded the motion 
 
 
 

     YES NO ABSTAIN 

Commissioner Delgado  
  

Commissioner Kathuria  
  

Commissioner MacLeod  
  

Commissioner Kessler  
  

Commissioner Roberti  
  

Commissioner Melvin  
  

Commissioner Thomas  
  

Commissioner Graham  
  

Chairman Theobalds  
  

 
 
 

        _____________________ 
        Michael Totaro 
        Assistant Secretary 

 
 

  

 



 

*Th i s  p ro po se d  mo t io n  ha s  no t  bee n  a c ted  upo n .  T he  p ro po sed  mo t io n  i s  be i ng  m ade  a v a i l a b l e  
pu r s uan t  to  the  Ope n  Mee t ing s  L aw §103 (e )  

 

199 Church Street, New York, NY  10007 ℩ nysif.com 

23- 

Kathy Hochul 
Governor 

 
 

PROPOSED MOTION* 
 
The following is a procedural vote considered by the NYSIF Board of Commissioners at a meeting 
held on Wednesday, September 20, 2023.  A quorum was present throughout: 

 
Motion to accept the written reports as submitted. 

 
 
Commissioner__________________________provided the motion to approve  
 
Commissioner__________________________seconded the motion 
 
 
     YES NO ABSTAIN 
Commissioner Delgado    

Commissioner Kathuria    

Commissioner MacLeod    

Commissioner Kessler    

Commissioner Roberti    

Commissioner Melvin    

Commissioner Thomas    

Commissioner Graham    

Chairman Theobalds    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        _____________________ 
        Michael Totaro 
        Assistant Secretary 

 
 
  

 



 

*Th i s  p ro po se d  mo t io n  ha s  no t  bee n  a c ted  upo n .  T he  p ro po sed  mo t io n  i s  be i ng  m ade  a v a i l a b l e  
pu r s uan t  to  the  Ope n  Mee t ing s  L aw §103 (e )  

 

199 Church Street, New York, NY  10007 ℩ nysif.com 

23- 

Kathy Hochul 
Governor 

 
 

PROPOSED MOTION* 
 
The following is a procedural vote considered by the NYSIF Board of Commissioners at a meeting 
held on Wednesday, September 20, 2023.  A quorum was present throughout: 
 

A motion was made to proceed into Executive Session for a discussion 
regarding matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, 
demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal or removal of a particular person or 
corporation - - specifically this applies to mortgage security calculator and staff 
salaries, for a discussion regarding the proposed acquisition or lease of real 
property, the proposed acquisition of securities, for a discussion regarding a 
particular policyholder, for a discussion that if disclosed would imperil public 
safety, and for a discussion regarding active litigation and legal advice. 

 
Commissioner__________________________provided the motion to approve  
 
Commissioner__________________________seconded the motion 
 
     YES NO ABSTAIN 
Commissioner Delgado    

Commissioner Kathuria    

Commissioner MacLeod    

Commissioner Kessler    

Commissioner Roberti    

Commissioner Melvin    

Commissioner Thomas    

Commissioner Graham    

Chairman Theobalds    
 
 
 

        _____________________ 
        Michael Totaro 
        Assistant Secretary 

  



 

*Th i s  p ro po se d  mo t io n  ha s  no t  bee n  a c ted  upo n .  T he  p ro po sed  mo t io n  i s  be i ng  m ade  a v a i l a b l e  
pu r s uan t  to  the  Ope n  Mee t ing s  L aw §103 (e )  

 

199 Church Street, New York, NY  10007 ℩ nysif.com 

23- 

Kathy Hochul 
Governor 

 
 

PROPOSED MOTION* 
 
The following is a procedural vote considered by the NYSIF Board of Commissioners at a meeting 
held on Wednesday, September 20, 2023.  A quorum was present throughout: 
 

A motion was made to adjourn the Board of Commissioners of the State 
Insurance Fund regular monthly meeting. 

 
Commissioner__________________________provided the motion to approve  
 
Commissioner__________________________seconded the motion 
 
 
 
     YES NO ABSTAIN 
Commissioner Delgado    

Commissioner Kathuria    

Commissioner MacLeod    

Commissioner Kessler    

Commissioner Roberti    

Commissioner Melvin    

Commissioner Thomas    

Commissioner Graham    

Chairman Theobalds    
 
 
 
 

        _____________________ 
        Michael Totaro 
        Assistant Secretary 

  



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

JANUARY 18 
 

FEBRUARY 15 
 

MARCH 15 

 
APRIL 19 

 

MAY 17 
 

JUNE 21 
 

JULY 19 

SEPTEMBER 20 

 

OCTOBER 18 
 

NOVEMBER 15 

 
DECEMBER 20 

 
 
 
 

NYSIF Board of Commissioners generally meet at 10:00 a.m. on the third Wednesday  
of every month, unless otherwise noted.  

The Board does not convene during the month of August. 
 
 

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 ℩ nysif.com 
 

 

November 2022 


	AGENDAS
	a. General Session Agenda  
	b. Executive Session Agenda

	STANDING REPORTS
	Report of Executive Director & CEO
	Report of Acting General Attorney

	REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES
	Business Operations Committee
	Investment Committee
	Property & Administrative Services

	CONSENT AGENDA 
	Proposed Minutes of the June 21, 2023 Board of Commissioners  Regular Monthly Meeting

	EXECUTIVE SESSION (if necessary)
	Executive Session Agenda
	Investment Committee
	Presentation:  Prosper Africa
	ProsperAfrica Presentation

	RESOLUTION: The Yield Book, Inc.
	RESOLUTION_Yield Book Inc.


	Budget & Audit Committee
	Disaster Recovery Plan
	NYSIF BC and DRP Presentation .pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: DFS Circular Letter Background
	Slide 4: DFS Filing Requirements
	Slide 5
	Slide 6: Business Continuity Plan
	Slide 7
	Slide 8: Disaster Response Plan (DRP)
	Slide 9: DRP Summary and Flowchart
	Slide 10
	Slide 11: Proactive Actions/Deliverables
	Slide 12
	Slide 13: Next Steps Forward

	NYSIF Disaster Response Plan - Revised (July 18 2023).pdf
	Disaster Response Plan
	(July 2023)
	Table of Contents
	I. NYSIF Disaster Response Procedure
	A. Response Leadership Team
	Purpose:
	Provide immediate direction before, during, and after a disaster.  To ensure periodic review and assessment of the DRP and hold the Incident Response Team accountable for implementation.  To test and update the DRP on a regular and consistent basis.
	Duties:
	Members and Responsibilities:
	Deputy Executive Director and/or Chief of Staff
	Serve and/or designate someone to serve as the Incident Commander (IC).  The IC is the primary disaster leader as well as the primary disaster liaison (between NYSIF and DFS). The IC is responsible for all incident action plans and activities to susta...
	Tasks include, but are not limited to:
	Director of Administration
	Monitor incident operations and advise the IC and Executive Management on all matters relating to operational safety, including the health and safety of agency personnel.  Manage and advise the IC and Executive Management on contract, procurement, sta...
	Tasks include, but are not limited to:
	Public Information Officer (PIO)
	Responsible for interfacing with the public, industry, media, and/or other agencies with incident-related information requirements.  Additionally, monitor all externally related information.
	Tasks include, but are not limited to:
	&#61623; Establishing communication with the Governor&#8217;s Office and other NYS agencies.
	&#61623; Drafting and issuing all public announcements.
	&#61623; Issuing press releases and establishing an event-specific webpage (if needed).
	&#61623; Sending event-specific updates out via social media and posting them online.
	&#61623; Providing all communications to the media relative to the incident and the DRP.
	Chief Information Officer (CIO)
	Monitor incident operations and advise the IC and Executive Management on all matters relating to IT infrastructure, including computer networking and communication services.
	Tasks include, but are not limited to:
	&#61623; Monitoring conditions and developing measures for assuring effective telecommunications and operational infrastructure during and after a disaster.
	&#61623; Advising the IC about incident technology issues.
	&#61623; Conducting risk analyses.
	&#61623; Implementing measures to provide for the continuation of technology services.
	&#61623; Monitoring technology services.
	&#61623; Communicating with the IC and staff, as appropriate.
	General Attorney
	Ensure legal staff, or outside counsel, if necessary, are available to assist in all aspects of response, as well as advise all business operations on coverage and claims issues.
	Tasks include, but are not limited to:

	B. Incident Management Team
	Purpose:
	Duties:
	Members and Responsibilities:

	C. Disaster Logistics Team
	Purpose:
	Lead the operational and technical functions of a response and carry out the directions of the Incident Management Team when responding to a disaster.
	Duties:
	Members and Responsibilities:

	D. Stakeholder Relations Team
	Purpose:
	Provide information and guidance to all agency policyholders, claimants, brokers, safety groups and other business partners to keep all parties advised of response measures to continue the provision of services.
	Duties:
	Members and Responsibilities:

	III. Business Processing During a Disaster
	A. Administration and Business Offices
	Address and solve local problems where possible and oversee operations in their responsibility area, consistent with established Business Continuity Plans.  The individual(s) designated for the operational management of each Business Office will serve...
	B. Information Technology
	Ensure all technology systems continue to function without a gap in service, consistent with established Business Continuity Plans.  Channel information to the appropriate personnel, obtain needed information, and coordinate/consult with the IC, Execu...
	C. Policyholder Services
	Assess the impact on the processes related to underwriting, auditing, and risk control in an efficient and timely manner, and identify alternative processes and procedures to ensure the continuation of services, consistent with established Business Co...
	D. Claims
	Assess the impact on the process for filing, processing, investigating, and paying claims in an efficient and timely manner, and identify alternative processes and procedures to ensure the continuation of services, consistent with established Business...
	E. Call Center
	Instructed on the agency&#8217;s response to a disaster and provided information to answer inquiries and deliver guidance on a 24/7 basis, consistent with established Business Continuity Plans.  Channel information to the appropriate personnel, obtain neede...
	F. Fraud Detection
	IV. DRP Training, Testing, and Modifications




	Property & Administrative Services Committee
	Albany Office Presentation
	NYSIF Solicitation for Real Property in the Capital Region
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11

	Albany Real Estate Presentation - Appendix
	Galesi -Starlite Associates - Comparable Projects - 2023-02-RE.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10: Mohawk Harbor Office Buildings
	Slide 11
	Slide 12: SI Group  Regional Headquarters 
	Slide 13

	Galesi Letter 8.3.23


	RESOLUTION: Salary Authorization
	RESOLUTION_Salary Authorization (Andrew Chou)


	Business Operations Committee
	Loss Cost Multiplier  
	2023 Loss Cost Multiplier & Pricing Summary
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13


	Hospital Credits & Climate Remediation
	Hospital Credit Pilot Program (Confidential-contains policyholder information)
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Climate Change
	Slide 3: The Effects of Climate Change
	Slide 4: The Impact on Worker Health
	Slide 5: The Impact on Worker Safety
	Slide 6: NYSIF Claims Data and Extreme Heat
	Slide 7: NYSIF Claims Data and Extreme Heat (cont.)
	Slide 8: NYSIF Claims Data and Extreme Heat (cont.)
	Slide 9: New York&#8217;s Leadership on Climate Action
	Slide 10: Health Care Sector Emissions
	Slide 11: Encouraging Health Sector Decarbonization
	Slide 12: Insurance as a Lever for Change
	Slide 13: Insurer Responses
	Slide 14: NYSIF&#8217;s Pilot Program
	Slide 15: Upfront Discounts
	Slide 16: Climate Action Plan
	Slide 17: Ongoing Premium Credits
	Slide 18: Benefits of the Pilot Program
	Slide 19: Potential Discounts for Existing Policyholders 
	Slide 20: Lost Hospital System Business



	Governance & Legal Affairs Committee

	ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING
	NYSIF BOARD MEETING CALENDAR 
	2023 Board of Commissioners Meeting Schedule


